

# Carers Partnership Board Minutes Wednesday 12 September 2012

Those in attendance:	
Stephen Archibald	Carers Bucks
Nadiya Ashraf	Buckinghamshire County Council, co- Chairman
Richard Brook	Bucks and Milton Keynes Crossroads Care
lan Cormack	Carer Representative, co-Chairman
Joy Jannetta	Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust
Margaret Morgan-Owen	Alzheimer's Society
Nigel Palmer	
Ann Whiteley	Carers Bucks

No	Item		
1	Apologies for Absence/changes in membership		
	Apologies for absence were received from Chris Petford, Clare Blakeway-Phillips, Jill Jack, David Jack, Kathleen Nawaz and Sam Shaw. The group introduced themselves.		
2	Minutes and matters arising		
	The minutes of the meeting held on the 13 June 2012 were agreed.		
	<i>Matters Arising</i> Page 2 – A query was previously raised whether the budget for the		

Learning Disability Service is being disproportionally cut compared to other areas.

Nadiya Ashraf explained that the Finance Lead for Adults & Family Wellbeing has advised that the figures are misleading as they suggest there is more money to come out which is not the case.

Margaret Morgan Owen said that the term 'efficiency' can be misleading and asked for a definition.

Nigel Palmer asked for clarification of the cut.

Ian Cormack explained there is not a breakdown against Service User Groups. Nadiya Ashraf will go back and request a more detailed explanation.

### Action: Nadiya Ashaf

Page 6

Item 4 – BSVAB - annual report

An initial session with carers to understand the current referral process has not been arranged. The Safeguarding Board are keen to have a carer link. A meeting is to be arranged.

### Action: Ann Whiteley

Page 7

Item 6 – Short Breaks update

Stephen Archibald told Board members that Dr Paul Roblin, Chief Executive of Berkshire, Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire LMCs has sent a letter to Carers Bucks advising that he is unhappy that GPs have not been appropriately consulted about the Short Breaks initiative. The letter was sent to Carers Bucks as they have been encouraging Carers to go to their GPs to discuss potential available funding for short breaks. The issue of getting the information about the Short Breaks initiative to GPs has been more complicated than anticipated.

Nigel Palmer said that he has also received feedback from carers that GPs are not aware of the Short Breaks initiative.

Ann Whiteley advised that she has met with Zita Calkin, Joint Commissioning Manager and Clare Blakeway-Phillips to discuss ways to increase GP awareness of the initiative. Bulletins have been sent out on three occasions.

Nadiya Ashraf said that the PCT's have given assurance that GP's are being made aware of the initiative. The PCT signed off the Short Breaks initiative in December to come into effect in June 2012. There is further work to be done with the Clinical Commissioning Groups as they are going to become responsible for the allocation of budgets. A copy of the letter received by Carers Bucks is to be sent to Nadiya Ashraf.

### Action: Stephen Archibald

#### Page 8 – Priorities

Richard Brook advised that Crossroads Care Bucks & Milton Keynes has received from funding from the Health Lottery to provide Carers over 60 years of age with a break. There is not a fixed amount of funding - the programme of care can be negotiated. The funding is not means tested; a questionnaire is completed (the Carer Quality of Life Tool) and checks are carried out before and after the funding is allocated. 50% of the total amount of the funding is still available. Members were asked to forward details of anyone who would benefit from the scheme to Richard Brook. The funding must be spent by March 2013.

### Action: All

Ian Cormack asked where the funding for the Project Development Worker was coming from. Nadiya Ashraf explained there is residual funding from Crossroads to support the work being done for the Carers Partnership Board. The work plan is to be discussed. Richard Brook added that the advertisement for the Project Development Worker is going out next week and that it would be desirable to recruit a carer to the post. The post will be 12 months, fixed term. The following two areas need to be looked at;

- The Self Funding Project (including setting up a Steering Group)
- Specific projects for the Carers Partnership Board

It is proposed that the Project Development Worker will attend the November meeting of the Carers Partnership Board and the work plan will also be presented at the meeting.

### 3 Hate Crime

Angie Sarchet, Cohesion & Equalities Manager took Members through a Powerpoint presentation on Hate Crime during which the following key points were highlighted;

The definition of Hate Crime agreed by the Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO) and Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) is as follows;

'Any criminal offence which is committed against a person or property that is motivated by hostility towards someone based on their disability, race, religion, gender identity or sexual orientation.'

<ul> <li>Hate crime can be experienced</li> <li>Examples of behaviour include;</li> <li>Physical attacks on a person and damage to a home/ve</li> <li>Threat of attack e.g. offen calls, cyber bullying</li> </ul>	son or a place s		
<ul> <li>Physical attacks on a personand damage to a home/ve</li> <li>Threat of attack e.g. offen</li> </ul>		such as physical a	assa
<ul><li>and damage to a home/ve</li><li>Threat of attack e.g. offen</li></ul>		such as physical a	assa
• Threat of attack e.g. offen	nicie		
•			م ما م
calls, cyper bullying	sive letters, abl	usive or obscene	pno
· Varbal accoults or insult	i a offanaive	leaflate and m	o oto
<ul> <li>Verbal assaults or insult abusive gestures</li> </ul>	S I.e. offensive	e leatlets and p	oste
abusive gestures			
The on-line survey was a snaps	shot audit which	ran from 14 Nov	/emb
2011 to 6 January 2012, it show			
• Seven strands were		inst; race, dis	sabili
religion/belief, sexual ori	•		
gender reassignment. Al	the strands, a	part from race, s	how
higher levels of incidence	•	orted for Thames	Vall
Police (where strand data	,		
There were 257 respon		•	ber
responses but the sample	size was not sta	atistically valid	
• Gender, race and age de		adly match those	of t
Gender, race and age de county	mographics broa	•	
<ul><li>Gender, race and age der county</li><li>There was a disproportio</li></ul>	mographics broa nately high leve	el of urban profe	
Gender, race and age de county	mographics broa nately high leve oups under repr o 30 April 2012,	el of urban profes resented. there were 231 i	ssior repo
<ul> <li>Gender, race and age der county</li> <li>There was a disproportio respondents, with other gr</li> <li>For the period of 1 April 2011 to</li> </ul>	mographics broa nately high leve oups under repr o 30 April 2012, Buckinghamshir	el of urban profes resented. there were 231 i e. A breakdown	ssior repo
<ul> <li>Gender, race and age der county</li> <li>There was a disproportio respondents, with other gr</li> <li>For the period of 1 April 2011 to of Hate Crime to the police in 1</li> </ul>	mographics broa nately high leve oups under repr o 30 April 2012, Buckinghamshir arison to nationa	el of urban profes resented. there were 231 i e. A breakdown il figures is;	ssior repo
<ul> <li>Gender, race and age der county</li> <li>There was a disproportio respondents, with other gr</li> <li>For the period of 1 April 2011 to of Hate Crime to the police in 1</li> </ul>	mographics broa nately high leve oups under repr o 30 April 2012, Buckinghamshir arison to nationa	el of urban profes resented. there were 231 i e. A breakdown I figures is; <b>Bucks</b>	ssior repo
<ul> <li>Gender, race and age der county</li> <li>There was a disproportio respondents, with other gr</li> <li>For the period of 1 April 2011 to of Hate Crime to the police in I type of Hate Crime and a compared</li> </ul>	mographics broa nately high leve oups under repr o 30 April 2012, Buckinghamshir arison to nationa National Figures 67%	el of urban profes resented. there were 231 i e. A breakdown il figures is; Bucks Survey	ssior repo
<ul> <li>Gender, race and age der county</li> <li>There was a disproportio respondents, with other gr</li> <li>For the period of 1 April 2011 to of Hate Crime to the police in 1 type of Hate Crime and a compared</li> <li>89% were racist crimes</li> </ul>	mographics broa nately high leve oups under repr o 30 April 2012, Buckinghamshir arison to nationa <b>National</b> <b>Figures</b> 67%	el of urban profes resented. there were 231 r e. A breakdown I figures is; Bucks Survey 33%	ssior repo
<ul> <li>Gender, race and age der county</li> <li>There was a disproportio respondents, with other gr</li> <li>For the period of 1 April 2011 to of Hate Crime to the police in a type of Hate Crime and a compared by were racist crimes</li> <li>89% were racist crimes</li> <li>6% were based on sexual</li> </ul>	mographics broa nately high leve oups under reproved o 30 April 2012, Buckinghamshir arison to national Figures 67% al 10%	el of urban profes resented. there were 231 r e. A breakdown I figures is; Bucks Survey 33% 15% 15%	ssior repo
<ul> <li>Gender, race and age der county</li> <li>There was a disproportio respondents, with other gr</li> <li>For the period of 1 April 2011 to of Hate Crime to the police in a type of Hate Crime and a compared where the police in a compared where based on sexual orientation</li> </ul>	mographics broa nately high leve oups under repr o 30 April 2012, Buckinghamshir arison to national Figures 67% al 10% 4% 3%	el of urban profes resented. there were 231 r e. A breakdown I figures is; Bucks Survey 33% 15%	ssior repo

The reasons for not reporting are;

- 55% didn't think the police could or would do anything
- 45% thought the crime was too common to report
- 41% didn't think it would be taken seriously
- 67% didn't know where they could get any support

Efforts were made to hold focus groups (various times including weekends and evenings) right across the County. Those who took part in the survey were invited to the Focus Groups. Unfortunately most were reluctant to do so and some said that they felt reliving the incident would be too traumatic.

Findings;

- Bucks has residents who are experiencing hate crime
- Improvement in identification and reporting
- Improving people's confidence to report and to come forward in the first place
- Improving awareness of where to report and the agencies that do exist.

Actions going forward include;

- A greater understanding of the issues
- The identification of local support agencies, provision and training needs (accessibility & gaps)
- Comparison with other Local Authorities (what works/does not work/successes, how different are Bucks as a county)
- Partnership awareness training
- Literature review
- The development of multi agency training

Stop Hate UK

- is a charity based in Leeds that provides independent and confidential support to people affected by Hate Crime. Victims and witnesses can contact the organisation by phone, text, post or online to report Hate Crimes, access support, and get information 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.
- Thames Valley Police will shortly be undertaking joint working with Stop Hate UK and the Local Authority to provide this service across Buckinghamshire. The initiative will run for one year and will cost approximately £41,000. Thames Valley Police are investing £10,000. The remaining cost of £31,000 will be split by the 18 Local Authorities in the Thames Valley.

Safe Places scheme

• is an initiative which came out of the Learning Disability Partnership Board.

• Local businesses and properties are being encouraged to place stickers in their windows to show they are a safe place for individuals to go into if they are feeling vulnerable.

- A pilot took place in Burnham in 2012 with the aim of the initiative being rolled about across the county
- A small Steering Group is to be set up to help drive this project forward

During the update, the following questions were raised and points made;

Margaret Morgan-Owen expressed concern that there is no referral to the elderly or those with limited mental capacity in the definition of Hate Crime. It is important that these 'groups' are included. The characteristics were agreed by the Chief Police Officer but thought can be given to how this information can be included in the figures for Buckinghamshire.

Richard Brook referred to one of the findings from the survey; a high percentage of people did not report an incident of hate crime as they didn't know where they could get any advice or support. There needs to be a better way of accessing information and supporting and development of individual agencies in order to reduce crime and support victims.

Margaret Morgan-Owen said there are quite a few rural areas in Buckinghamshire. If these areas do not have a community centre and access to transport, this could be an issue. Angie explained that Stop Hate UK provides a fully staffed 24 hour, 7 day a week, Hate Crime reporting service. Incidents can be reported on-line, by text or by telephone. The call handlers have considerable experience and expertise in supporting victims of Hate Crime. The aim is to ensure that people living in rural areas are aware of the Stop Hate UK support service and it is there for them to use.

Angie went on to say that agencies are spread out across the Thames Valley and a way forward has yet to be decided. Different agencies have different strengths. We need to ensure that agencies have staff members who are correctly trained, have the right skill set and are able to interconnect and share information.

Nicole Palmer asked how businesses sign up to the Safe Places scheme. A small project group has been set up. Visits to businesses interested in the scheme can be arranged upon request (one area at a time).

	Richard Brook said there needs to be clarification about the pathways i.e. if an individual is looking for support they don't necessarily identify key support agencies as somewhere to go as they may see the incident as a criminal matter. Members of the public also need to be advised that they can talk to their local charity who can signpost them to the appropriate support agency.
	Nigel Palmer referred to the figure of given of 55% of those who responded to the survey didn't report an incident of Hate Crime as they didn't think that the police could or would do anything and said this needs to be addressed.
	Ann Whitelely said there needs to be a realistic expectation of the results of the survey; reporting incidents of Hate Crime are one thing; outcomes are a different matter. Ann went on to ask if this was the first survey to be carried out about Hate Crime in Buckinghamshire. Angie Sarchet explained that this is the first survey on Hate Crime to be carried out in Buckinghamshire and that one of the issues to be addressed is targeting those areas not well represented.
	Ann Whiteley suggested that SUCO could assist with the promotion and signposting of services by including information in the SUCO newsletter. Angle Sarchet said she would contact Ann Whiteley once the initiative is ready to be taken forward. Action: Angle Sarchet
	lan thanked Angie for her presentation.
4	Draft Care and Support Bill
	Nadiya Ashraf explained that that Draft Care & Support Bill was published on the 11 July 2012. The Bill contains significant changes to legislation and social care practice which has applied to Carers in the last 60 years. There is a lot of clarity around legislation for adults and adult carers but not for young carers or parent carers. The new legislation is due to come into effect in 2015/16. There is a huge amount of work to be done before this becomes law to work towards improving practice for carers.
	The deadline for consultation on the draft Bill is the 19 October 2012. Comments are to be forwarded to Nadiya by the 5 October 2012. Action: All
	Nadiya advised that she will formulate the comments received and send a joint response from the Carers Partnership Board. The final

meeting.

Action: Nadiya Ashraf

The following key points from the draft Bill were highlighted;

Clause 1: Duty to promote individual wellbeing

There are a number of new duties on the Draft Bill. How the outcomes are going to be delivered, the finances to support the Bill and the extra work is still unknown.

Richard Brook said that some of the wording is quite open.

*Clause 2 – New duty to provide information and advice* Local Authorities will be required to establish and maintain an information and advice service so that people understand how the local care and support system operates; what choices they have and how to access services.

In Buckinghamshire, the Local Authority has always carried out this duty through Carers Bucks. This has now become a duty of the Local Authority.

Margaret Morgan-Owen asked if funding is available to assist with this duty. Nadiya explained that funding details are unknown at this stage. Funding will become clearer in 2013/14. The amount is yet unknown; these funds are not usually ringfenced but appear in the overall budget for Adult Social Care.

Clause 3 – new duty to promote diversity and quality in provision of services

This is an interesting clause as the personalisation agenda is a new duty for Local Authorities. Those people who are not the responsibility of the County Council should still receive services.

Clause 7 – New duty to provide services to prevent or delay needs for care and support - There is a difference in what is delay and what is process.

Clause 10 – New single duty for carer's assessments based on appearance of need

This removes the requirement for carers to request an assessment or to be providing a substantial amount of care on a regular basis. The implications need to be considered

Clause 12 – Needs assessments should include a whole family assessment

There is little mention about parent carers and young carers in the

document.

Clause 13 – New eligibility framework and national minimum eligibility threshold

For the first time Local Authorities will have to determine eligible needs of an adult who has care and support needs and carers' needs against an eligibility framework which will be set out in regulations.

Clause 14 – Charging for carer's services is optional but Local Authorities can impose charges in meeting carer's needs for support Self funders can still come to the Local Authority for services but there could be a charge for the provision of these services.

During the discussion, the following questions were asked and comments were made;

Ian Cormack said that Buckinghamshire does not have eligibility criteria for carers. Nadiya explained that national criteria for carers will be set in 2015. Bucks County Council will look into developing a working group of carers to support the work in meeting new legal responsibilities to carers and look at the assessment process. In 2011, 880 assessments were carried out in Buckinghamshire. The question is how many of these were viewed as a quality assessment. Following on from the assessments, four Care Plan workshops have been held locally in conjunction with Carers Bucks. The feedback from the Focus Groups will be looked at in November.

lan Cormack;

- It is important to identify the 'hidden carers' and expressed concern about how the proposed changes in the Bill are going to work and the reality of the changes.
- There is the issue about prevention and providing help before the needs of the individual become critical or substantial. There may be opportunities for funding available for care and support through the Prevention agenda.

Richard Brook;

- There is concern about the cost and resource implications of the draft bill. Members of the Board need to be aware that there is the risk that the Bill may not become law in the Coalition Government period and is likely to be part of the next election Government manifesto.
- GP's are overwhelmed with 'hidden' carers. The proposed changes in the Care and Support Bill should help to address this issue.
- If the bill becomes law, there are extra responsibilities for Local

Authorities but no extra funding.

- There is virtually no mention about Health in the Bill. There is no responsibility on Health in relation to carers and no recognition of the health purchasing system. If GPs do not have any responsibility, why would they engage in the consultation.
- Short breaks for carers are currently jointly funded by Health and Social Services. If the proposed changes to the come into effect, Health will no longer be responsible for the funding.

Nadiya Ashraf;

- A large proportion of the residents of Buckinghamshire do not access County Council services. GP's are seen as pivotal as many people access services through their GP.
- Local Authorities will have an increased responsibility to provide access to services to individuals other than those eligible at present. There are large costs associated with this provision. Funding has been discussed but has not been identified.
- There has to be engagement from education services, hospitals and GPs otherwise the consultation becomes focussed on Adult Social Care and is not a 'whole system' approach.

Stephen Archibald added that the Local Authority has a statutory requirement to identify carers.

Members of the Board were referred to page 5 of the document which gives details of how to respond to the consultation. Members were also advised that a Young Carers consultation is taking place online (Bucks County Council website) from 24 August – 5 October 2012. The consultation is for services who work with either/both Young Carers & Parent Partnership & Service users in both of these services.

Richard Brook encouraged Members of the Board to contact their local MP to ask for their support or to write a letter in response to the consultation as every letter received is counted and included in the final response.

# 5 Update from the Executive Partnership Board

There were no updates to report.

## 6 Update on Priorities

A template detailing the priorities for the Carers Partnership Board was distributed to Board members. During discussion, the following points

were made;

Richard Brook advised that 1-2 priorities have been identified for the Project Development Worker which will be discussed once he/she is in post. A work programme will be put together for the next meeting of the Carers Partnership Board.

### Action: Richard Brook/Nadiya Ashraf

Outcome 1 – Helping people to speak up & to be active citizens Nadiya Ashraf said that some of the priorities are best placed and would be more objective if they were set up and hosted by a third party e.g. outcome 1 – meeting with the Cabinet Lead and Senior Officers where a Carers perspective is needed. It was agreed that Richard Brook would take this action forward and would write to the Cabinet lead and Senior Officer to propose a meeting to discuss the way commissioning impacts on carers.

### Action: Richard Brook

Nadiya added that case studies from eight individuals would be presented with the letter on areas including transport, Direct Payment Providers, Home Care, Advocacy and Day Services.

Members were asked to send suggestions of items they would like raised/discussed (i.e. carers being more engaged in the commissioning process) and how they would like to contribute to the meeting (i.e. lead on an agenda item) to Richard Brook by Friday 12 October - rbrook@buckscrossroads.org

### Action: All

### *Outcome 2 – Supporting Carers*

Ian Cormack said that delivering a workshop, jointly for carers and professionals should be scheduled as a priority.

#### *Outcome 5 – Improving Health*

Ian Cormack said that the issue of health checks keeps arising and asked if there is evidence about the efficacy of health care for carers?

Ann Whiteley explained that the NHS offer comprehensive health checks for adults between the ages of 40 and 74 which are normally carried out at a GP surgery. The health checks are promoted in the Carers Bucks newsletter but they should be offered automatically. People who are in receiving a Carers Allowance or who are the main carer for an elderly or disabled person whose welfare may be at risk if the carer falls ill may also be entitled to a free flu jab. This will be given on an individual basis at the GP's discretion.

Richard Brook asked if any guidance on health care was available for

	carers. If not could guidance be produced which could also cover breaks etc. Further work will take place outside of the Carers Partnership Board meeting on the allocation of the actions. <b>Action: Nadiya Ashraf/Richard Brook</b>
7	Date of next and Future Meetings
	The following items were discussed prior to the end of the meeting;
	<ul> <li>Items are to be added to the agenda for the November meeting;</li> <li>Hospital Discharge</li> <li>Carers Surveys</li> <li>Carers Assessment</li> </ul> Action: Sharon Griffin
	Lou Patten is also to be invited to the November meeting to discuss the priority on personalisation (to identify and develop an advice service for self funders to include guidance on support planning. Action: Ann Whiteley
	The next meeting will take place on 14 November 2012 at 9.30am, Mezzanine Room 1, County Hall, Aylesbury.

Chairman